
To promote cooperative actions with communities to protect the Carson River Watershed. 

 
 

 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING 
 

DATE:  July 17, 2024 

TIME:  6:30 pm 

LOCATION: East Fork Fire Protection District Conference Room 

1694 County Road, Minden, NV 89423 

The meeting will be preceded by a tour of Mud Lake.  The Board will meet at 3 pm in the parking lot 
of Sonney’s BBQ Shack, 1488 US HWY 395 N, Gardnerville, 89410, and carpool to the tour site.  If 
you would like to drive directly to the tour site, be at the entry gate (see map in agenda package) at 
3:30 pm. Dinner will be at 5 pm back at the restaurant.  Our Board meeting will be at 6:30 pm at the 
East Fork Fire Protection District Conference Room at 1694 County Road, Minden, NV 89423.  A 
quorum of the CWSD Directors may be present at the events preceding the board meeting, but no 
discussion or action will be taken on any agenda item. 

CWSD encourages Board Members to attend all field trips.  However, virtual attendance of Board 
meetings at remote locations may be available via Zoom.  If you prefer to phone in please call 
(669)900-9128. Meeting ID:464 759 8209; Passcode: 059722  

Please note streaming availability cannot be guaranteed for remote meeting locations. 

AGENDA 

Please Note: The Carson Water Subconservancy District (CWSD) Board may: 1) take agenda items out of order;  
2) combine two or more items for consideration; and/or 3) remove an item from the agenda or delay discussion 
related to an item at any time.  All votes will be conducted by the CWSD Board of Directors.  Reasonable efforts will 
be made to assist and accommodate individuals with limited ability to speak, write, or understand English or those 
with disabilities who wish to join the meeting.  Please contact Catrina Schambra at (775)887-7450 or email: 
catrina@cwsd.org at least 3 business days in advance so that arrangements can be made. 

1. Call to Order the CWSD Board of Directors/Carson River Watershed Committee 

2. Roll Call 

3. Pledge of Allegiance 

4. For Discussion Only:  Public Comment  (Public Comment will be taken at the beginning and 
end of the meeting and may be taken at the discretion of the Chair on agenda items listed for possible 
action. Action may not be taken on any matter brought up under public comment until scheduled for 
action at a later meeting. Public comment during meetings is limited to three minutes for each speaker.) 

5. For Possible Action:  Approval of Agenda 

6. For Possible Action:  Approval of the Board Meeting Minutes of June 18, 2024 

**CONSENT AGENDA** 

Please Note:  All matters listed under the consent agenda are considered routine and may be acted upon by the 
Board of Directors with one action and without an extensive hearing.  Any member of the Board or any citizen may 
request that an item be taken from the consent agenda, discussed, and acted upon separately during this meeting. 

7. For Possible Action:  Approval of Treasurer’s Report for June 2024 

8. For Possible Action:  Approval of Payment of Bills for June 2024 

Carson Water Subconservancy District 
Board of Directors & Carson River Watershed Committee 

Page 1 of 46

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82535417461?pwd=uaSx4RtwB2LpbP4Ncxpyo8gdKWJWa1.1
mailto:catrina@cwsd.org


Carson Water Subconservancy District Board of Directors & Carson River Watershed Committee 
7/17/2024 Meeting Agenda 

2 

To promote cooperative actions with communities to protect the Carson River Watershed. 

**END OF CONSENT AGENDA** 

9. For Discussion Only:  Presentation on the University of Nevada, Reno (UNR)
Extension Program 

10. For Discussion Only:  Strategic Planning Process

11. For Possible Action:  Review the Draft Agreement between CTWCD and CWSD

12. For Discussion Only:  Staff Reports

• General Manager

• Legal

• Correspondence
(1) The Record Courier, Water sustainability focus along Carson River
(2) Sierra Nevada Journeys -Final Report - CWSD Grant

13. For Discussion Only:  Directors & Committee Members Reports

14. For Discussion Only:  Public Comment (Public Comment will be taken at the beginning and
end of the meeting and may be taken at the discretion of the Chair on agenda items listed for possible
action. Action may not be taken on any matter brought up under public comment until scheduled for
action at a later meeting. Public comment during meetings is limited to three minutes for each speaker.)

15. Adjournment

Supporting material for this meeting may be requested from Catrina Schambra at 
775-887-7450 (catrina@cwsd.org) and is available on the CWSD website at https://www.cwsd.org

AFFIDAVIT OF POSTING 

The undersigned affirms that on or before 9 am on July 10, 2024, a copy of the Notice of Public Meeting and 
Agenda for the July 17, 2024, meeting of the Carson Water Subconservancy District Board of Directors, per  
NRS 241.020 was posted at the following locations:  Carson Water Subconservancy District,  
777 E. William St, Ste 209, Carson City, NV 89701; CWSD Website:  https://www.cwsd.org; and Nevada Public 
Notice Website:  https://notice.nv.gov/ 

7/9/2024 4:30 pm 

______________________________________________ ____________________________________ 
Catrina Schambra, Office Manager, CWSD  Date & Time of Posting 

Page 2 of 46

https://www.cwsd.org/
https://www.cwsd.org/agendas-temporary/cwsd-board-meetings/
https://notice.nv.gov/


Page 3 of 46



AGENDA ITEM #6 

 

MINUTES OF LAST 

BOARD MEETING 

Page 4 of 46



DRAFT 

1 6/18/2024 

 

CARSON WATER SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND 

CARSON RIVER WATERSHED COMMITTEE MEETING 

June 18, 2024 

Draft Minutes 

Chairperson Workman called the meeting of the Carson Water Subconservancy District (CWSD) 
to order at 6:30 pm in the CWSD Conference Room, 777 E. William Street, Suite 209 in Carson 
City, NV 89701.  Roll call of the CWSD Board of Directors was taken and a quorum was 
determined to be present. 
CWSD Directors present:   

Mark Gardner 

Jim Hindle  

Sharla Hales 

Tammy Hendrix  

Lisa Schuette 

Lee Sterrett 

Fred Stodieck  

Mike Workman 

Absent Directors:  Stacey Giomi, Cassi Koerner, Dave Nelson, Ernie Schank & Bus Scharmann. 

The roll call included CWSD Committee Members present: Charlie Dobson & David Griffith. 

CWSD Staff & Guests present: 

David Bruketta, Lyon County (via Zoom) 

Alison Kramer, RCI(via Zoom)  

Edwin James, CWSD 

Scott Keller, Public (via Zoom) 

Steve King, CWSD Attorney 

Lindsay Marsh, CWSD 

Kelly Nicholas, CWSD AmeriCorps 

Chairperson Workman led the pledge of allegiance. 

Item #4 – Discussion Only:  Public Comment –  

Director Schuette stated she just wanted to give a shout-out for the bus tour. That was great, 
and I was only able to participate one day but enjoyed it and it was really interesting and folks 
really enjoyed it. So, kudos! 

Director Gardner stated he would like to thank Ms. Hunt for coming down and doing a 
presentation to the Douglas County Board of Commissioners on Low Impact Development.  It’s 
a very, very interesting concept and something that I think the county really needs to take a 
look at implementing.  It was very well received. 

Item #5 – For Possible Action:  Approval of Agenda 

Director Stodieck motioned to approve the June 18, 2024, Agenda, as 

presented.  Director Hales seconded the motion and the Board 

unanimously approved it. 

Item #6 – For Possible Action:  Approval of the Board Meeting Minutes of May 22, 2024 

Committee Member Griffith motioned to approve the Board Meeting 

Minutes of May 22, 2024, as presented.  Director Stodieck seconded the 

motion and the Board unanimously approved it. 

**CONSENT AGENDA** 

Item #7 – For Discussion Only:  Approval of Treasurer’s Report for May 2024 

Item #8 – For Possible Action: Approval of Payment of Bills for May 2024 

Page 5 of 46



DRAFT 

2 6/18/2024 

 

Item #9 – For Possible Action:  Approval of CWSD Agreement #2024-2  Alpine Watershed 

Group - Upper Carson River Watershed Programs, not to exceed $30,000 

Item #10 – For Possible Action:  Approval of CWSD Agreement #2024-3 River Wranglers - 

Conserve Carson River Workdays, not to exceed $40,000 (PULLED) 

Item #11 – For Possible Action: Approval of CWSD Agreement #2024-4 Carson Valley 

Conservation District - Carson River Restoration & Flood Damage Repairs (2 years), not to 

exceed $225,000 

Item #12 – For Possible Action:  Approval of CWSD Agreement #2024-5 Lahontan 

Conservation District - Clearing & Snagging Carson River, not to exceed $32,700 

Item #13 – For Possible Action:  Approval of CWSD Agreement #2024-6 Dayton Valley 

Conservation District - Management & Administration (2 years), not to exceed $100,000 

Item #14 – For Possible Action:  Approval of CWSD Agreement #2024-7 Dayton Valley 

Conservation District – Weed/Restoration Crew (2 years), not to exceed $60,000 

Item #15 – For Possible Action:  Approval of CWSD Agreement #2024-8 Storey County Six 

Mile Canyon Culverts Project, not to exceed $36,500 

Item #16 – For Possible Action:  Approval of CWSD Agreement #2024-9 Churchill County 

– Lahontan Valley Water Level Measurement Program (3 years), not to exceed $48,000 

Item #17 – For Possible Action:  Approval of CWSD Agreement #2024-10 The Nature 

Conservancy – Riparian Tree Planting, Wetland Enhancements, & Adaptive Grazing (2 

years), not to exceed $62,089 

Item #18 – For Possible Action:  Approval of Addendum to #2022-8 Dayton Valley 

Conservation District (time extension only)  

Item #19 – For Possible Action:  Approval of Addendum to #2023-5 Dayton Valley 

Conservation District (time extension only) 

Item # 10 was pulled for further discussion. 

Director Gardner motioned to approve the Consent Agenda Items 7-9 and Items 

11-19 as presented.  Director Hales seconded the motion and the Board approved 

unanimously. 

Item #10 – For Possible Action:  Approval of CWSD Agreement #2024-3 River 

Wranglers - Conserve Carson River Workdays, not to exceed $40,000 

 

Committee Member Griffith motioned to approve Item 10 with a minor typo 

correction.  Director Stodieck seconded the motion and the Board unanimously 

approved it. 

**END OF CONSENT AGENDA** 

Item #20  For Discussion Only:  Presentation on the 2024 “Get on the Bus!” Watershed Tour 

Kelly Nicholas, CWSD AmeriCorps, reported on the June 11-12 Watershed Tour, summarizing 
the daily itineraries and sharing comments from the evaluation surveys from attendees.  The 
event was well attended and got great reviews, even with the high temperature on the second 
day.  Director Schuette, Director Sterrett, and Steve King participated in the tour. 

No action taken. 

Item #21  For Possible Action:  Strategic Planning Process 

Mr. James presented CWSD's historic goals and focus before 1997, after the 1997 flood, and the 

Page 6 of 46



DRAFT 

3 6/18/2024 

 

2022 strategic planning results.  Each month leading up to the Strategic Planning Session in 
November staff will review different CWSD information in preparation for the workshop.  

No action taken. 

Item #22  For Possible Action:  Discuss CWSD's Role on the CTWCD Board 

Mr. James reported on the history of CWSD’s involvement with CTWCD as an original and 
continuous member of their Board.  In recent months, the proposal for an Interlocal Agreement 
between the two entities to transfer funding from CTWCD to CWSD for Carson River projects is 
being considered to streamline the funding process.  In these discussions, the question of 
whether CWSD should retain a seat on its Board was brought up.  Mr. James led a lengthy 
discussion on the changing goals of the CTWCD during its history and whether CWSD needed to 
be involved.  The consensus remained that the input of CWSD with its knowledge and expertise 
of the Carson River Watershed, especially during flooding events is a valuable resource to 
CTWCD and should not be lost.  Chairperson Workman reported that he and Director Giomi had 
met with the CTWCD Chairperson and discussed the potential funding and the CWSD 
representation on the Board.  The Administrative Committee at their July 5, 2024, meeting also 
discussed this issue and determined the importance of keeping CWSD active on the CTWCD 
Board. 

Chairperson Workman stated we bring more than just funding requests to the Board; we have 
full knowledge of the watershed from the top to the bottom.  And there may be a time when 
they need us or we need them and having that person on that Board just expedites that whole 
process.  Our Administrative Committee supported strongly that that we maintain a position on 
that board. 

No action taken. 

Item #23  For Possible Action:  General Manager Annual Review 

Chairperson Workman stated that the Administrative Committee voted to recommend 
approval of the General Manager Review.  Mr. James scored 29 out of 30 points, 
extremely high marks, and a lot of good comments.   During our Administrative 
Committee reviews, as always, Mr. James is very, very quick to recognize his staff and, 
and their accomplishments.  Every month we see the staff report where they log their 
activities, the bus tour, going in and out of the schools and all that is a tremendous 
workload and a great job of leadership.  Putting the team together, keeping it 
functioning, and keeping it all on track.  It is a nice thing, too, that we have staff that 
know their jobs well and are recognized all over the state and the country.  

Kudos around the room on a job well done, as usual by Mr. James. 

Committee Member Griffith motioned to approve the General Manager Annual 

Review as presented.  Director Stodieck seconded the motion and the Board 

unanimously approved it. 

Item #24 For Discussion Only:  Staff Reports 

Mr. James reported the following: 

• He will be going to Elko next week for the Department of Water Resources (DWR) 
kickoff meeting of the Humbolt Working Group of which he is officially a member.  DWR 
is trying to figure out how to deal with the impacts groundwater pumping has on 
surface flows.  The process developed in the Humboldt watershed may be used in other 
watersheds in the state.  He thinks it is really good for CWSD to be part of this advisory 
group so we are prepared as we move forward to know what we can do and make sure 

Page 7 of 46



DRAFT 

4 6/18/2024 

 

whatever is being proposed works for everyone.  That is always our goal, and we can 
work for everyone.  How do you protect the senior water users?  How do you protect 
the other users that are out there? Etc. 

• He gave kudos to Directors Giomi and Schuette regarding Carson City's public meeting 
with the EPA to talk about the Mercury Superfund Site status and its ramifications in the 
watershed.  There is now a process in place and they are looking to try to resolve this.  
One of the ideas is to bring NDEP and people in charge of the Superfund Site in when a 
project comes forward.  They would vet it first and say okay, this is how it goes through, 
and then push it forward for FEMA disaster and try to get those kinds of relationships 
built.  We are looking for a local solution and it was really good to hear their positive 
input.  He thinks it was because of Director Giomi and Director Schuette’s comments 
during the presentation to the Carson City Supervisors that got the EPA’s attention. 

• On June 20 he will give a presentation on the 30-Year Regional Water Plan to Lyon 
County, Douglas County, and the Stagecoach General Improvement District 

Ms. Marsh reported on the following: 

• The entire office staff has been extremely busy this month!  The bus tour and the High-
Water Mark event at Lahontan Dam both took a lot of planning.  She has been busy with 
Ed on the 30-Year Regional Water Plan which is going well.  She has been working on 
Carson City pumping reports.  There is no shortage of spreadsheets, very large 
spreadsheets!  Everything is going really well! 

Legal – None 
Correspondence –  

(1) Nevada Appeal – Mercury no threat to Carson River recreation, supervisors told 
(2) NCNR Press Release – High Water Mark Sign Unveiled at Lahontan 

Item #14 For Discussion Only:  Directors & Committee Members Reports 

• Committee Member Griffith reported he attended a great training In Washington, DC 
provided by the National Association of Counties Learning Institute. 

• Director Sterrett reported he enjoyed the 2-day watershed bus tour!  He learned a lot 
and he thinks it is a very good thing that we are doing with that event. 

• Director Hales reported that Ms. Hunt’s presentation on Low Impact Development (LID) 
was well received by her county Board and she has even received comments from the 
public saying it is time we did this.  She is happy to see that progress has been made and 
people are open to this. 

• Director Gardner reported it is important that we integrate some of these low impact 
development aspects into coming projects.  That would be terrific.  I think that would 
send a good message to the public and our developers. It is a really impressive 
presentation! 

Item #15 For Discussion Only:  Public Comment - None 

There being no further business before the Board, Chairperson Workman adjourned the 
meeting at 7:47 pm.  

Respectfully submitted, 

Catrina Schambra 
Secretary to the Board 

Page 8 of 46



AGENDA ITEM #7 

 

TREASURER’S REPORT 

Page 9 of 46



Page 10 of 46



Page 11 of 46



Page 12 of 46



Page 13 of 46



Page 14 of 46



Page 15 of 46



Page 16 of 46



Page 17 of 46



Page 18 of 46



Page 19 of 46



Page 20 of 46



Page 21 of 46



Page 22 of 46



AGENDA ITEM #8 

 

PAYMENT OF BILLS 

Page 23 of 46



Page 24 of 46



Page 25 of 46



Page 26 of 46



Page 27 of 46



Page 28 of 46



Page 29 of 46



AGENDA ITEM #9 

Page 30 of 46



CARSON WATER SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT 
 

 
TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Edwin James  
 
DATE: July 17, 2024 
 

SUBJECT: Agenda Item #9 –For Discussion Only:  Presentation on the University of 
Nevada, Reno (UNR) Extension Program 

  

DISCUSSION:  Holly Gatzke, Northern Area Director for the University of Nevada, Reno 
(UNR) Extension, will present recent changes to the program. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Receive and file. 
 

Page 31 of 46



AGENDA ITEM #10

Page 32 of 46



CARSON WATER SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT 
 

 
TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Edwin James  
 
DATE: July 17, 2024 
 

SUBJECT: Agenda Item #10 –For Discussion Only:  Strategic Planning Process 

  

DISCUSSION:  In preparation for our Strategic Planning Session in November, this month 
staff will review the integrated watershed planning process, the Carson River Coalition, 
outreach, and social media. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Receive and file. 
 

Page 33 of 46



AGENDA ITEM #11

Page 34 of 46



CARSON WATER SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT 
 

 
TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Edwin James  
 
DATE: July 17, 2024 
 

SUBJECT: Agenda Item #11 – For Possible Action:  Review the Draft Agreement 
between CTWCD and CWSD  

DISCUSSION:  Attached is the latest draft agreement for CWSD to receive funding from 
Carson Truckee Water Conservancy District (CTWCD) for river projects.  Each year 
CWSD and CTWCD receive funding requests from the same entities for the same projects.  
This requires two agreements and doubles the workload on our funding partners.  Instead 
of duplicating the same effort for the same projects, CTWCD would provide CWSD with 
the funding they receive in the Carson River Watershed.  CWSD would use these funds for 
a pre-determined list of projects in the Carson River Watershed. Ultimately, this agreement 
would streamline funding for projects in the Carson River Watershed and benefit all 
parties. 

The Administrative Committee discussed this draft agreement at their June 5, 2024, 
meeting.  Steve King, Director Schank, Chairperson Workman, and staff have been active 
in the edits to the document provided by CTWCD.  This is provided for informational 
purposes to update the Board.  The discussion of this possible agreement is in the early 
stages of development by both CWSD and CTWCD. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Provide direction to staff. 
 

Page 35 of 46



 

 
 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 

  

 THIS INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT (“Agreement”)  effective as of the January 

1, 2025 entered into by and between the Carson Water Sub-Conservancy District 

(“CWSD”), a political subdivision of the State of Nevada, and the Carson-Truckee Water 

Conservancy District (the “District”), a political subdivision of the State of Nevada. The 

“District” shall include  its directors, officers, employees, and immune contractors as 

defined in NRS 41.0307.  CWSD and the District are sometimes collectively referred to 

herein as the “Parties.” 

  

RECITALS: 

 

WHEREAS, the Parties are public agencies as defined in NRS 277.100(1)(a).  

 

WHEREAS, NRS 277.180 provides that any one or more public agencies may 

contract with any one or more other public agencies to perform any governmental service, 

activity or undertaking which any public agency entering into the contract is authorized to 

perform. 

 

WHEREAS, the District receives tax revenue from various Nevada political 

subdivisions within its jurisdiction, specifically the Consolidated Municipality of Carson 

City, Churchill County, Douglas County, Lyon County, Storey County and Washoe 

County.   

 

 WHEREAS, the District supports and sponsors projects within its jurisdiction that 

conserve, facilitate, and/or develop water resource projects and/or provide for the greatest 

beneficial use of water within the District.  

 

 WHEREAS, the District has historically supported and sponsored such water 

resource projects in CWSD’s jurisdictional area.     

 

WHEREAS, the District wishes to formalize its support and sponsorship of 

projects in the geographic area in which CWSD operates by providing for the regular and 

consistent distribution of funds as grants, for approved purposes, directly to CWSD for 

stewardship as determined by CWSD.   

 

NOW THEREFORE, in light of the foregoing and in consideration of the mutual 

covenants contained herein, the sufficiency, which is hereby acknowledged, the Parties 

agree as follows.  

 

1. GRANTS TO CWSD.   

 

1.1 The District shall use best efforts to grant directly to CWSD that 

portion of District annual revenues generated by the tax receipts from the Consolidated 

Municipality of Carson City, Douglas County, and Lyon County excluding those revenues 

attributable to the City of Fernley, and excluding funds necessary to pay the District’s 

annual administrative expenses as determined solely by the District.   

Deleted: is made this

Deleted: ____ day of 

Deleted: ,

Deleted: means the Carson-Truckee Water Conservancy District,

Deleted: ad valorem 

Deleted: , 

Deleted: in the geographic area in which 

Deleted: operates.

Deleted: ,

Deleted: ¶

Deleted: ¶

Page 36 of 46



 

 

1.2 Annually, during the term of this Agreement the District will 

calculate the amount of funds that will be available to be  distributed as a grant or grants to 

CWSD.  
 

1.3 None of the funds granted to CWSD may be used for CWSD 

administrative expenses or the administrative expenses of any sub-grantee. 

 

1.4 To facilitate the grants contemplated by this Agreement during its 

term, in February of each year CWSD  shall in writing inform  the District  of specific 

projects for which the District’s funds will be utilized by CWSD during the upcoming fiscal 

year..  Nothing in this Agreement shall limit the District’s ability to condition any grant 

conditions established by the District at the time of the grant.  

 

2. TERM OF AGREEMENT.  The term of this Agreement shall commence   

on January 1, 2025   and  shall terminate on December 31, 2025 provided however, by 

operation of this paragraph, this Agreement shall automatically renew for successive one  

year terms unless terminated by either party, in writing, upon no less than a thirty (30)  day 

notice prior to the applicable annual termination date. 

 

 

3. MISCELLANEOUS 
 

3.1 FORCE MAJEURE.  Neither party shall be deemed to be in 

violation of this Agreement if it is prevented from performing any of its obligations 

hereunder due to strikes, failure of public transportation, civil or military authority, act of 

public enemy, epidemics, accidents, fires, explosions, or acts of God, including, without 

limitation, earthquakes, floods, winds, or storms and restraint by order of a court or 

regulatory body or agency of competent jurisdiction and any non-action by or failure to 

obtain the necessary authorization or permits from  a Federal or State agency which by the 

exercise of due diligence and foresight such party could not reasonably have been expected 

to overcome.  In such an event the intervening cause must not be through the fault of the 

party asserting such an excuse, and the excused party is obligated to promptly perform in 

accordance with the terms of the Agreement after the intervening cause ceases. 

 

3.2 NOTICES.  All  notices under this Agreement shall be in writing 

and delivered to the following  addresses: 

 

, CWSD Board Chairman 

777 E. William Street, Suite 209 

Carson City, NV 89701 

(775) 887-7450 

 

, District Board Chairman 

1005 Terminal Way, Suite 150 

Deleted: transferred

Deleted: The District’s annual grant pursuant to this Agreement 

shall be reflected in a separate Grant Agreement with CWSD. 

Deleted: The Grant Agreement entered into pursuant to this 

Agreement shall provide that none 

Deleted:   All grant funds must be used for projects specifically 

described in the Grant Agreement. 

Deleted:  

Deleted: will send a

Deleted: letter

Deleted: describing

Deleted: shall file an annual grant application, on a schedule 

established by the District, setting forth the proposed use of funds 

for the upcoming year.

Deleted: GRANT 

Deleted: begins on

Deleted: the date this Agreement

Deleted: 2025

Deleted: is executed by the District

Deleted:  

Deleted: terminates 

Deleted:  that the 

Deleted: renews 

Deleted: years

Deleted: twelve (12) month3 year terms periods if mutually 

agreeable 

Deleted: days-

Deleted:  

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.56",  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Underline

Formatted:  No bullets or numbering

Deleted: written

Deleted: officials at the

Deleted:  stated:

Deleted: Ed James

Deleted: CWSD General Manager

Deleted: Todd Westergard

Deleted: Termial

Page 37 of 46



 

Reno, NV 89502 

(775) 322-8041 

 

 

 

3.3 REMEDIES.  Except as otherwise provided for by law or this 

Agreement, the rights and remedies of the Parties shall not be exclusive and are in addition 

to any other rights and remedies provided by law or equity, including, without limitation, 

actual damages, and to a prevailing party reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs.  

 

3.4 ENTIRE CONTRACT & MODIFICATION. This Agreement 

and its integrated exhibits if any, constitute the entire agreement of the Parties and such are 

intended as a complete and exclusive statement of the promises, representations, 

negotiations, discussions, and other agreements that may have been made in connection 

with the subject matter hereof.  Unless an integrated exhibit to this Agreement specifically 

displays a mutual intent to amend a particular part of this Agreement, general conflicts in 

language between any such exhibit and this Agreement shall be construed consistent with 

the terms of this Agreement.  Unless otherwise expressly authorized by the terms of this 

Agreement, no modification or amendment to this Agreement shall be binding upon the 

Parties unless the same is in writing and signed by the respective Parties hereto. 
 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have signed this Agreement to be effective 

as of the date and year first written above.  

 

 

DISTRICT: CWSD: 

  

 

 

 

By: 

________________________________ 

Name:  Todd Westergard 

Its:  Board Chairman 

 

 

 

By:  

_______________________________ 

Name: Mike Workman  

Its: Board Chairman  

  

 

Formatted: Font color: Red

Formatted: Left,  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: List Paragraph, Left, Line spacing:  single,  No
bullets or numbering, Widow/Orphan control, Tab stops: Not
at  0.42"

Formatted:  No bullets or numbering

Page 38 of 46



STAFF REPORTS 

Page 39 of 46



 

 

CARSON WATER SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT 
 

 
TO:   Board of Directors 
 
FROM:  Edwin James  
 
DATE:  July 17, 2024 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item #12 - For Information Only:  Staff Report  

 
DISCUSSION: The following is a list of meetings/activities attended by Ed James and staff since the 
last Board meeting on June 18, 2024: 

6/20 Ed gave a presentation on the 30-Year Regional Water Plan at the Lyon County Board, 
Douglas County Board, and the Stagecoach General Improvement District meetings 

6/22 Kelly demonstrated the Floodplain Model for an event at the Carson City Shooting Range 

6/23-28 Debbie attended the annual American Society of Floodplain Managers (ASFPM) conference 
in Salt Lake City, Utah 

6/24 Ed & Lindsay met with USGS Staff re: the Upper and Middle Carson River Model 

6/25 Ed attended the Humboldt Advisory Working Group meeting in Elko 

6/26 Ed gave a presentation on the 30-Year Regional Water Plan at the Indian Hills General 
Improvement District (IHGID) meeting 

6/27 Ed & Lindsay completed an inspection of Lost Lakes 

6/28 Brenda & Ed met with Chris Fritsen & Zack Carter of NDEP re: 319 Regen Ag Grant 

7/1 Brenda & Kelly met with Steven Funk at KNVC in Reno to discuss a possible radio program 
for the I Am Carson River outreach campaign 

7/1 Ed & Brenda attended a meeting with Carson Staff re: the Mexican Dam Portage project 

7/2 Ed & Brenda attended a meeting with Carson City Staff re: the Carson River Master Plan 

7/2 Ed & Brenda attended a meeting re: the Aquatic Trails project with State Parks Staff 

7/2 Ed gave a presentation on the 30-Year Regional Water Plan at the Churchill County Board of 
Commissioners meeting 

7/3 Brenda & Kelly attended Alpine Watershed Group (AWG) Hope Valley Restoration and 
Aquatic Habitat Enhancement Project Tour 

7/3 Ed gave a presentation on the 30-Year Regional Water Plan at the Gardnerville Ranchos 
General Improvement District (GRGID) Board meeting 

7/9 Ed attended the Carson Truckee Water Conservation District (CTWCD) Board meeting 

7/9 Debbie & Lindsay attended the monthly High-Water Mark (HWM) Outreach meeting 

7/10 Brenda participated in the JE Fuller Interview with Alpine Watershed Group (AWG) Staff for 
the West Fork Carson River Project 

7/11 Debbie attended a contractor meeting re:  Dayton Master Plan 

7/16 Catrina assisted in Single Audit On-Site Testing for FY 23-24 

7/16 Brenda attended a meeting with Carson City Staff re: the Carson River Master Plan 

Page 40 of 46



2 
7/17/2024 CWSD Board Meeting 
Agenda Item #12 - Staff Report 

 

 

7/16 Lindsay attended USACE Flood Risk Workshop:  Decision Making using GIS Data from NWS 
& NOAA Sea Level Rise Viewer 

7/17 Ed & Brenda attended a meeting with Carson City Staff re: the Mexican Dam Portage project 

7/18 Brenda met with US Forest Service & National Parks Staff re:  East Fork Hot Springs 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Receive and file. 

Page 41 of 46



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CORRESPONDENCE 

Page 42 of 46



The Record Courier, July 5, 2024 

 

Water sustainability focus along Carson River 
By Kurt Hildebrand 

It’s not just hot in Carson Valley, it has also been extremely dry, 
with the last measurable rainfall in Minden recorded on May 
14. 

While dry conditions help when harvesting, those same 
conditions make it harder to grow hay. 

Key to Carson Valley’s agriculture are rights to irrigation water 
in the Carson River, which officials with the Carson River 
Subconservancy has been slowly decreasing over the year. 

Executive Director Ed James said work on a 30-year Watershed 
Regional Drought and Water Sustainability Plan is underway. 

The plan will combine data gathered by the subconservancy 
and information from the various water purveyors in the 
watershed. 

James said that work will also be shared with the U.S. 
Geographical Survey, which is currently conducting a study specific to Carson Valley. 

“This is not a master plan,” he said. “It’s just providing additional information to those purveyors as they plan for the 
future. Most entities know what they want for their local area. What we’re doing is providing information that’s outside of 
the local area so they can do better planning for the future.” 

He said it’s also not designed to take anyone’s water rights or propose any changes to either Nevada water law or the 
Alpine Decree, which divides the river into segments and establishes water rights priorities. 

James said a review of water use in the Valley comparing 1974-1941 with 1975-2009 showed that flows on the river at the 
Carson gauge near Prison Hill indicated levels that were historically higher in June and July have shifted to March, April and 
May. That’s important because irrigation season begins April 1 and may be the result of warmer temperatures. 

“If you look at March, the later dates show more flow occurring than there was historically,” he said. “There’s a shift in 
runoff on the Carson. That water is coming down faster and sooner. It benefits the Lahontan reservoir because Lahontan 
fills in the winter and springtime.” 

There isn’t a reservoir or other manmade structure to capture water upstream from Carson Valley when irrigation water 
dries up. 

He said ranchers have two choices, either to pump more water when it’s dry or to not irrigate and leave fields fallow.  

“It’s something we can’t control,” he said. “The East Fork has very little manmade impacts upstream from us, so this is 
what Mother Nature is giving us today.” 

And according to records, increasing agricultural pumping also increases the draw on the Valley’s aquifer. 

There are an estimated 100,000 acre feet of recharge in Carson Valley and supplemental agricultural water rights account 
for around half of that. 

Municipal water use accounts for around 13,000 acre feet while agricultural irrigators have pumped anywhere between 
5,000 in wet years and 18,000 acre feet in dry years between 2007 and 2020. 

Domestic wells in the Valley are fairly stable at around 4,000 acre feet, according to information prepared by Lumos and 
Associates. 

“Surface water and ground water use goes up and down basically on wet or dry years,” James said. “In 2011 it was a very 
wet year. Then in the years 2014-15, it was a very dry year, and we see the see total demand in the groundwater go up.” 

Despite an average winter there were above average flows on the river compared to the historic average, before it 
dropped to below average runoff in June. 

He said that the Subconservancy believes Carson Valley will see an additional pumping of 1,700 acre feet over the next 30 
years. 

Overall, water pumping in Carson Valley is rising on average over time with 30,000 acre feet, up from around 27,000 acre 
feet in 2007. 

### 

The last few patches of snow are clinging to the north faces of the 
Sierra Nevada's Carson Range as temperatures rise to 100 degrees 
and hotter.  Photo by Kurt Hildebrand. 

Page 43 of 46

https://www.recordcourier.com/news/2024/jul/05/water-sustainability-focus-along-carson-river/


Page 44 of 46



Page 45 of 46



Page 46 of 46


	7-17-24 #1 Agenda
	Map to Mud Lake Gate
	#6 insert (last minutes)
	#7 insert (TreasRpt)
	7-17-24 #7 TREASURERS REPORT
	#8 insert (Pmt of Bills)
	7-17-24 #8 BILLS PAID REPORT
	JUNE 2024 Petty Cash Report
	7-17-24 #8 BILLS PAID REPORT

	#9 insert
	7-17-24 #9 UNR Extension Program 
	#10 insert
	Page 1

	7-17-24 #10 Strategic Planning Session
	#11 insert
	Page 1

	7-17-24 #11 CTWCD DRAFT AGREEMENT
	7-17-24 #11A Draft Agreement between CWSD and CTWCD
	Staff reports
	7-17-24 #12 STAFF REPORT
	CORRESPONDENCE insert
	Correspondence (1) Water sustainability focus along Carson River
	Correspondence (2) Sierra Nevada Jorneys -Final Report -CWSD Grant



